
SCRUTINY : GOVERNANCE, 
PERFORMANCE, BUSINESS CHANGE AND 

CORPORATE SERVICES

4.00 pm TUESDAY, 8TH JANUARY, 2019

COUNCIL CHAMBER

A Pre-Meeting will take place in Conference Room 1 at 3.30 pm.  
This Meeting is for Committee Members only 

Please note that today’s meeting will be recorded. 
 

This recording will not be broadcast on the Authority’s internet as it will only be used 
for training purposes by the Democratic Services Department.

The Public Seating areas will be in view of the Camera and, by entering the Chamber 
and using the Public Seating Area, Members of the Public are consenting to being 
filmed and to the possible use of those images and sound recordings as outlined 

above.  

This Agenda has been prepared by the Democratic Services Department. Any 
member of the public requiring information should contact the department on 

(01685) 725284 or email democratic@merthyr.gov.uk.

Any reference documents referred to but not published as part of this agenda 
can be found on the Council’s website or intranet under Background Papers.

AGENDA

1. Apologies for Absence 

2. Declarations of Interest (including whipping 
declarations) 

mailto:democratic@merthyr.gov.uk


Members are reminded of their personal 
responsibility to declare any personal and 
prejudicial interest in respect of matters contained 
in this agenda in accordance with the provisions of 
the Local Government and Finance Act 1992 
relating to Council Tax, the Local Government Act 
2000, the Council’s Constitution and the Members 
Code of Conduct

Note:

(a) Members are reminded that they must 
identify the item number and subject matter 
that their interest relates to and signify the 
nature of the personal interest and

(b) Where Members withdraw from a Meeting 
as a consequence of the disclosure of a 
prejudicial interest they must notify the 
Chair when they leave

3. Human Resources 
To consider report of the Chief Executive 5 - 12

4. Tackling Poverty 
To consider the attached report 13 - 20

5. Medium Term Financial Plan 2019/20 to 2022/23 – 
Additional Demands 
To consider report of the Chief Executive 21 - 34

6. Work Programme 2018/19 
To consider the attached report 35 - 46

7. Scrutiny Referrals, Feedback and Follow up 
Actions 

8. Reflection and Evaluation of Meeting 
To receive an update from the Chair

9. Any other business deemed urgent by the Chair 



COMPOSITION: Councillors:  T Skinner (Chair)
                     G Lewis (Vice-Chair)

Councillors:   J Amos, H R Jones, D Sammon, 
W R Smith and C T Jones

Co-optees:    J Beard and K Sutton

together with appropriate officers

If you would prefer a copy of this agenda in another language please contact 
democratic@merthyr.gov.uk or telephone 01685 725284

mailto:democratic@merthyr.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



Civic Centre, Castle Street,  
Merthyr Tydfil    CF47 8AN 

 

Main Tel: 01685 725000 www.merthyr.gov.uk 
 

 

 
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE REPORT 

 

 

 

 

To:  Chair, Ladies and Gentlemen 

Human Resources 
 
 

1.0 SUMMARY OF THE REPORT 
 
1.1 Following the Wales Audit Office (WAO) audit in March 2016 outcomes were 

considered to be ‘Adequate’ with the summary in the report stating ‘The Council has 
made good progress in improving the services provided by its Human Resources 
(HR) function, but there remains scope to further develop arrangements for 
workforce planning and performance monitoring.’  

 
1.3  The HR service continues to implement the recommendations using benchmarking 

and best practice from external stakeholders. 
 

2.0 RECOMMENDATION(S) 
 
2.1 That Scrutiny Committee notes the content of the report and progress made to date. 
 
2.2 That the Scrutiny Committee identifies any further information they would like to 

receive. 
 
2.3  That the Scrutiny Committee identifies priorities which can be taken into account by 

Cabinet in developing budget proposals. 
 
 
 

3.0 INTRODUCTION AND BACKGROUND 
 
3.1 Members of Scrutiny have asked for this report to be presented to them. Scrutiny are 

asked to consider the report and establish if there are any further elements they 
would like to be considered as part of the project plans. Scrutiny is also asked to 

Date Written 1st January 2019 

Report Author Fran Donnelly 

Service Area Human Resources 

Committee Date 8th January 2019 

Page 5

Agenda Item 3



consider the evaluation from the Managers Academy and if there is any specific 
management data it would like to view. 

 
3.2 Members of Scrutiny are asked to consider the following. 
 

 Contrast and compare the WAO proposals for improvement in the report. 

 Comment on the single points of dependency across the Authority – how 
much of a risk is this in terms of capacity and capability of the Authority 
(workforce planning). 

 An update on corporate sickness absence statistics over the last 3 years.   

 The quarterly report on agency staff employed by the local authority including 
financial details / costs. 

 

4.0 WHERE WE WERE  
 
4.1 In March 2016 the WAO undertook the HR Review. The WAO made a number of 

proposals for improvement for the human resource service and function for the 
Council. These are:- 

 

 The Council should roll out training for all managers on new HR policies and  
procedures and implement the planned Managers’ Academy. 

 The Council develops a strategic overview of the workforce implications of its  
service change proposals to better identify opportunities for redeployment and 
retraining, and facilitate more ‘joined-up’ planning across service areas.  

 The Council strengthens its mechanisms for recording and reporting  
performance against its key human resources and workforce indicators  

 

5.0 WHERE WE ARE NOW  
 
5.1 WAO Recommendations 
 
5.1.1 The first Management Academy undertaken by the Council ended in November 

2018. An evaluation exercise was undertaken with view to undertake similar 
schemes and activities in the future. The Council is keen to reinforce the new skills 
acquired through the introduction of a management competency framework which 
will help them to consolidate their learning, and to pass their expertise to new 
cohorts of the programme including first line managers. Essentially the learning has 
demonstrated that management need to think differently, particularly in relation to 
achieving financial savings and exploiting new commercial opportunities. The results 
of the evaluation exercise are attached as a background paper 1 for consideration by 
Security Members. 

 
5.1.2 The Organisation Development Strategy and Workforce Plan was approved by 

Council on the 27th June 2018. Work is still required to implement the Plan, the Plan 
will be reviewed in June 2019. The Plan is a considerable step forward in delivering 
the remaining two recommendations.  

 
 
 

Page 6



5.2 Single points of dependency (SPOD) 
 
5.2.1 Departments have themselves identified if there is a single point of dependency and 

highlighted it as part of their risk register. As part of the corporate Voluntary Early 
Retirement/Voluntary Redundancy process a number of single points of dependency 
have been identified. Each applicant was required to complete a skills questionnaire 
within the application. This identified the main key elements, tasks and purpose of 
the role, key meetings that the applicant attends to enable the role to be carried out, 
the key groups that the applicant is a member of, any specific qualifications held 
which are essential for the role, specific tasks and any projects or initiatives that the 
applicant does which sit outside the job role. Where a SPOD has been identified the 
workforce development team will assist the department to allow for the transfer of 
knowledge or skills during the employees notice period.   

 
5.3 Corporate Sickness 
 
5.3.1 The figures in relation to corporate sickness have increased during 2017-2018 as 

can been seen in the background papers 2 and 3. The sickness monitoring process 
has changed and long term sickness is not monitored as it was, we have also 
improved our sickness recording, so the two factors have attributed to the higher 
sickness levels in 2017/18. There was more than a 20% variance in sickness for 
2017/18, compared to the previous year. 

 
5.3.2 The Council publishes its sickness data as requested by the Welsh Government. 

The link for the data can be found here: 
http://www.mylocalcouncil.info/Data.aspx?id=_00PH&cat=14904&data=934&lang=en
-GB 

 
5.4 Agency usage. 
 
5.4.1 The Council operates a contract with Pertemps for agency labour to be supplied to 

the Council, as one of the UK's largest recruiters Pertemps provides temporary 
staffing solutions for the Council, however there are a number of Pertemps staff that 
have been placed with the Council for a considerable number of years. 

 
5.4.2 Management data in relation to staff placements is provided to the Council weekly. 

Below is the costing data for the last quarter. Due to the recruitment freeze that was 
implement these costs have increased, it is likely that these costs may remain high 
until the recruitment freeze is lifted. 

 
5.4.3 The table below shows the agency usage and costs for September 2018 and 

October 2018 
 

 

SEPTEMBER OCTOBER 

Row Labels 

Count 
of 

Worker 

Sum of 
Total 
Hours 

Sum of 
Spend 

Count 
of 

Worker 

Sum of 
Total 
Hours 

Sum of 
Spend 

Education 
Welfare 1 73.00 £908.85 1 67.00 £834.15 

Cemetery 4 577.50 £7,236.08 4 296.00 £3,708.88 

Benefits 1 111.00 £1,476.30 1 140.50 £1,868.65 
Page 7

http://www.mylocalcouncil.info/Data.aspx?id=_00PH&cat=14904&data=934&lang=en-GB
http://www.mylocalcouncil.info/Data.aspx?id=_00PH&cat=14904&data=934&lang=en-GB


Business Support 1 118.50 £1,475.33 1 118.00 £1,469.10 

Civic Amenity 
Site 4 451.50 £4,818.66 6 540.50 £5,918.88 

Childrens 
Services 2 237.00 £2,870.07 2 274.00 £3,318.14 

Street Cleansing 7 1036.00 £13,052.11 7 963.00 £12,066.39 

Env Health  1 82.50 £1,914.00 1 79.00 £1,832.80 

Fly Tipping 1 40.00 £473.60 1 13.00 £153.92 

Parks 9 1010.00 £11,557.90 8 624.00 £7,438.98 

Highwayrs 2 291.50 £3,694.00 2 330.50 £4,446.88 

LEA 1 90.00 £1,120.50 1 86.00 £1,070.70 

Active Merthyr 3 26.00 £351.26 4 53.00 £755.61 

NLC 1 68.75 £709.50 1 102.00 £1,052.64 

Orbit Centre 1 161.50 £2,072.01 1 161.50 £2,080.47 

Payroll 1 106.00 £1,246.56 1 106.00 £1,246.56 

Refuse/Recycling 29 2964.00 £38,401.87 26 2819.83 £36,740.30 

Revenue/Benefits       1 19.50 £242.78 

Parks 1 148.00 £2,396.12 1 59.00 £955.21 

Grounds Maint 7 981.00 £11,981.45 7 643.50 £7,817.75 

Schools 2 18.00 £185.76 1 4.00 £41.28 

Social Workers 4 375.00 £14,382.32 4 339.50 £13,139.62 

Tourist Centre 1 18.00 £184.32 1 12.00 £115.92 

School Transport 1 80.00 £779.20 1 72.00 £769.28 

Care Homes 104 2872.33 £38,150.59 72 2032.08 £26,145.95 

Grand Total 189 11937.08 £161,438.33 156 9955.42 £135,230.81 

 
5.4.4 The table below shows the agency usage and costs for November 2018 and the total 

costs for the service area for the quarter. 
 

 

NOVEMBER TOTAL 

Row Labels 

Count 
of 

Worker 

Sum of 
Total 
Hours 

Sum of 
Spend 

Quarterly 
spend by 
Area 

Education 
Welfare 1 90.25 £1,123.61 £2,866.61 

Cemetery       £10,944.96 

Benefits 1 185.00 £2,460.50 £5,805.45 

Business Support 1 79.00 £983.55 £3,927.98 

Civic Amenity 
Site 3 364.00 £3,775.35 £14,512.89 

Childrens 
Services 2 207.50 £2,512.83 £8,701.04 

Street Cleansing 10 1209.25 £15,183.12 £40,301.62 

Env Health  1 112.50 £2,610.00 £6,356.80 

Fly Tipping       £627.52 

Parks 3 334.50 £3,670.44 £22,667.32 

Highwayrs 2 306.50 £4,032.41 £12,173.28 

Page 8



LEA 1 170.50 £2,122.73 £4,313.93 

Active Merthyr 5 81.00 £1,094.31 £2,201.18 

NLC 1 126.50 £1,305.48 £3,067.62 

Orbit Centre 1 8.50 £105.83 £4,258.31 

Payroll 1 117.00 £1,375.92 £3,869.04 

Refuse/Recycling 27 3447.50 £44,938.34 £120,080.50 

Revenue/Benefits 1 178.50 £1,827.84 £2,070.62 

Parks 1 222.00 £3,594.18 £6,945.51 

Grounds Maint 1 163.50 £2,067.33 £21,866.53 

Schools       £227.04 

Social Workers 8 763.50 £29,751.36 £57,273.29 

Tourist Centre 1 30.00 £289.80 £590.04 

School Transport 1 80.00 £915.20 £2,463.68 

Care Homes 71 2443.50 £32,325.39 £96,621.92 

Grand Total 144 10720.50 £158,065.49 £454,734.63 

 
5.4.5 PAWS is Pertemps latest online procurement system, enabling the Council to order 

Pertemps staff using a simple and secure electronic catalogue. It is an end-to-end 
web based solution for the entire recruit to hire process including: ordering, resource 
utilisation, timesheet management, reporting and billing. The system is currently 
being implemented for the Council to use with staff training being undertaken. 
Following implementation management data will be available for the Council to 
consider the full use of agency labour as part of workforce development. 

 
5.4.6 A report Review of Peripheral and Agency Staff was presented to cabinet on the 

13th December 2017 with a number of recommendations which are currently being 
actioned by the department the recommendations were: 

 
o Delegated authority is given to Human Resources and Organisational Development 

to control and veto requests for peripheral staff (either using Pertemps Management 
Information system, or our own P2P system). The policy and procedure (last 
approved by Council on 11 July 2011) is updated as per the attachment. 

o To develop an action plan which will include the review of all vacancies currently 
occupied by agency staff, with consideration to adopting a phased approach over the 
term of the new contract with Pertemps to reviewing the use of agency staff against 
other methods of employment. 

o A maximum cap will be imposed for all new agency staff of three months (12 weeks) 
for all new agency contracted positions with effect from 1st January 2018.  Any 
proposal to extend will require the prior agreement of CMT / Head of Human 
Resources. This will not apply to current staff within contract.   

o Collaborative work on the use of peripheral and agency staff is reviewed collectively 
by management and Trade Union colleagues. 

o Positions which are currently occupied by agency staff are used first to consider 
another an employee who may be identified as being ‘at risk’ of potential 
redundancy.  

o The Council considers alternative methods of engaging peripheral staff (i.e. fixed 
term, annualised, and flexible working contracts). 

 

Page 9



6.0 WHERE WE WANT TO BE  
 
6.1  To be adequate or above in all areas of work undertaken by the department.  
 
6.2  To provide managers with all data they require in order to manage their workforce 

effectively.  
 
6.3  To ensure that succession planning is fully embedded into the Council.  
 
6.4  To ensure that performance management and an appraisal process ‘Focus on My 

Performance’ is fully embedded into the Council. 
 
6.5 To ensure that the Organisation Development Strategy and Workforce Plan is fully 

embedded into the Council. 
 

7.0 WHAT WE NEED TO DO NEXT  
 
7.1 For departments that are new to Performance Management, we will offer training to 

both managers and staff based on setting and reviewing objectives. Training will be 
available during the objective setting, mid-term review, and end of year processes.   

 
7.2 Focus on My Performance (Staff) 2nd May 2018 Council approved the scheme and 

accompanying documents. A review of the scheme will be undertaken in April 2019 
with focus groups to obtain feedback from staff and line managers to ensure that the 
new process is fit for purpose and suits as many job roles as possible.  

 
7.3 The Organisation Development Strategy and Workforce Plan was approved by 

Council on the 27th June 2018. Work is still required to implement the plan and then 
review the Plan in June 2019. 

 
7.4 The Stress Survey in 2017 highlighted the three main ‘stressors’ as being Demands, 

Management Control, and Change Management. The report has helped to establish 
a baseline across departments. The Council undertook a second stress survey in 
August 2018, these results are currently being evaluated and a report will be 
presented to Council for consideration.  

  

8.0 CONTRIBUTION TO WELLBEING OBJECTIVES 

8.1 The department assists other service areas to meet their Wellbeing Objectives and 
respective plans and strategies. 

 
 
 
 
 
GARETH CHAPMAN 
CHIEF EXECUTIVE 
 

 
 
 
 

COUNCILLOR ANDREW BARRY 
PORTFOLIO TITLE 

 
 
 
 Page 10



BACKGROUND PAPERS 
Title of Document(s) Document(s) Date Document Location 

Background paper 1  
Level Overall Data. 

 
Background paper 2 

sickness 
 

Background paper 3 
sickness for 2015-2018 

 

14/12/2018 
 
 

14/12/2018 
 
 

14/02/2018 

 

 

Does the report contain any issue that may impact the Council’s 
Constitution?  
 

 

 

Page 11



This page is intentionally left blank



Civic Centre, Castle Street,  
Merthyr Tydfil    CF47 8AN 

 

Main Tel: 01685 725000 www.merthyr.gov.uk 
 

 

 
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE REPORT 

 

 

 

 

Tackling Poverty 

To:  Chair, Ladies and Gentlemen 

 
 

1.0 SUMMARY OF THE REPORT 
 
1.1 The purpose of this report is to outline the work being undertaken both across 

council service areas and wider to tackle the poverty agenda. 
 

1.2 The report outlines the current themes that sit within the draft strategy and considers 
how best to move forward with this agenda. 

 

2.0 RECOMMENDATION(S) 
 
2.1  The content of this report is discussed and noted. 
 
 

3.0 INTRODUCTION AND BACKGROUND 
 
3.1 Prosperity for All, the Welsh Governments national strategy to take forward the 

Programme for Government, is designed to bring together the efforts of the whole 
public sector towards the central mission of delivering Prosperity for All. The long 
term aim is to build a Wales that is prosperous and secure, healthy and active, 
ambitious and learning and united and connected. 

 
3.2 MTCBC’s Tackling Poverty strategy represents our contribution to achieving 

Prosperity for All.  The strategy takes three key themes and places them in a long-
term context, and sets out how they fit with the wider partnership arena in order to 
deliver improved outcomes for all.  The strategy is not just about what we deliver but 
how we deliver.  Making a real difference in people’s lives requires us to rethink how 
we do things, and this strategy provides us with the focus to better direct the energy 
and resources of the whole Council so that we can better address the fundamental 
challenges facing the County Borough.  

Date Written 17th December 2018 

Report Author Sue Walker, Alyn Owen, Lisa 
Curtis Jones 

Service Area People and Performance 

Committee Date 8th January 2019 

Page 13

Agenda Item 4



4.0 WHERE WE WERE  
 
4.1 There were 4 main Welsh government funded anti-poverty programmes that the 

Council took the lead on: 
 

o Communities First; 

o Flying Start; 

o Supporting People; and 

o Families First. 
 

4.2 The responsibility for leading on these programmes was spread across several 
service areas of the council, preventing a more integrated and collaborative way of 
planning and using resources to achieve shared outcomes. 

 
4.3 Without a common outcomes framework progress was difficult to measure and the 

governance arrangements were not consistent.  
 
4.4 With the introduction of the Wellbeing of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 and 

the Council’s new wellbeing duty, there was an opportunity to look at new ways of 
delivering on tackling poverty which crossed service area boundaries and would 
provide an integrated response to improving wellbeing. 

 
4.5 Tackling Poverty Partnership Board was established in September 2016 along with 

the Tackling Poverty Strategic Group (see Appendix 1) 
 

5.0 WHERE WE ARE NOW  
 
5.1 The Tackling Poverty strategy has three broad themes, each with strategic priorities 

that are designed to bring together a cross section of council service areas and wider 
partners in order to achieve a shared set of outcomes (See Appendix 2). 

 

Theme Regeneration 
 

Strategic priorities  Reduce unemployment and worklessness; 

 Improve business growth and infrastructure; 

 Better town centre and communities. 

Theme Lifelong Learning 
 

Strategic priorities  Better achievements; 

 Greater opportunities; 

 Better prospects. 

Theme Health and Wellbeing 
 

Strategic priorities  Building resilient communities; 

 Strengthening families 

 
 
 

 Page 14



6.0 WHERE WE WANT TO BE  
 
6.1 From 1 April 2019, Welsh Government are introducing two new grants that aim to 

strengthen the ability of local authorities and their partners to deliver services 
focused on early intervention for those in greatest needs. 
 
Children and Communities Grant, encompassing: 

 
 Flying Start: 
 Families First; 
 The Legacy Fund; 
 Promoting Positive Engagement for Young People; 
 St David’s Day Fund; 
 Communities for Work Plus; and 
 Childcare and Play. 

 
Single Housing Support Grant, encompassing: 

 

 Supporting People; 

 Homelessness Prevention; and 

 Rent Smart Wales Enforcement. 
 

6.2 The Tackling Poverty structure will align the 2 grants to support the achievement of 
the strategy’s shared outcomes by adopting a more integrated approach to resource 
planning across Council directorates, with a specific focus on early intervention and 
prevention. 

 
6.3 Commissioned services will offer a joined up response to the key challenges 

affecting people living in poverty to ensure a more holistic provision of services that 
meet need.  Consideration is being given to how we can refine the management of 
our internal and external funding to inform how MTCBC utilise these monies in order 
to properly resource the services that will deliver the real change for people.    

 
6.4 Greater integration and collaboration between Council directorates, and with external 

partners who have a shared mission to tackle poverty and mitigate the impacts on 
people.  The model for service delivery will be based on the sustainable development 
principle (the 5 ways of working) which will mean bringing together cross directorate 
services to work towards a common goal.  

 

7.0  WHAT WE NEED TO DO NEXT  
 
7.1 To ensure that the 5 ways of working underpins how we take this strategy forward, 

we will be reviewing current operational working groups to ensure either improved 
alignment with the strategic priorities or developing an alternative (replacement) 
structure of operational working groups across the three themes: (Regeneration, 
Lifelong Learning, and Health and Wellbeing). These working groups will comprise of 
officers from across the Council and wider partners, with operational responsibility 
and service delivery knowledge to act as a conduit between the high level outcomes 
and the steps needed to achieve them.   

 
7.2 In light of the new Welsh Government funding arrangements that will be introduced 

in April 2019 there is an opportunity for the Council to adopt a more flexible approach Page 15



to how it can better utilise monies available when planning and delivering services to 
ensure resources are targeted more effectively. 

 
7.3 There is also the opportunity to dovetail this work with our commissioned services 

through the third sector.  Having a comprehensive picture of what services we 
provide will help us better understand how best to deploy resources and improve our 
ability to self-evaluate how effective we are in delivering real change to those who 
need this strategy to be successful. 

 
7.4 As part of the work to review the corporate wellbeing plan Focus on the Future, the 

Tackling Poverty Strategy will provide a framework for the refocus of the plan in Year 
3. It will help ensure that the strategic focus for the Council is committed to 
addressing the threats to wellbeing that poverty presents to the people of Merthyr 
Tydfil. 

 

8.0 CONTRIBUTION TO WELLBEING OBJECTIVES 

8.1 The Tackling Poverty strategy is the key organisational strategy to help deliver all of 
the four wellbeing objectives outlined in Focus on the Future. Poverty represents a 
serious threat to the wellbeing of individuals and communities. Taking an integrated 
response to tackle poverty through the Tackling Poverty governance arrangements 
increase our chances of success in delivering real change to people’s lives. 

 

 

 
DIRECTOR/CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S NAME 
TITLE 

PORTFOLIO COUNCILLOR’S NAME 
PORTFOLIO TITLE 

 
 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 
Title of Document(s) Document(s) Date Document Location 

List the Background 
documents which have 
been relied on in 
preparing the report. 
E.g. previous minutes of 
relevant committees 

 
 

  

 

Does the report contain any issue that may impact the Council’s 
Constitution?  
 

 

 
 
 
 

 
 

 

Page 16



APPENDIX 1 TACKLING POVERY BOARD 

TACKLING POVERY STEERING GROUP 

OPERATIONAL ACTION GROUPS 

          REGENERATION 

(1.1) Unemployment and worklessness 

(1.2) Business growth and infrastructure 

(1.3) Town Centre 

    LIFELONG LEARNING 

(2.1) Better achievement 

(2.2) Greater opportunities 

(2.3) Better prospects 

HEALTH AND WELLBEING 

(3.1) Building resilient communities 

(3.2) Strengthening families 

 Strategies on a Page (SOAP) 

 Action Plan 

 

 Strategies on a Page (SOAP) 

 Action Plan 

 

 

 Strategies on a Page (SOAP) 

 Action Plan 

 

 Short-term objectives (1 year) 

 Medium-term objectives (2-5 years) 

 Long-term objectives (6-10 years) 

 Short-term objectives (1 year) 

 Medium-term objectives (2-5 years) 

 Long-term objectives (6-10 years) 

 Short-term objectives (1 year) 

 Medium-term objectives (2-5 years) 

 Long-term objectives (6-10 years) 

Funding sources:  

Children and Communities Grant 

Housing Support Grant 

The Steering Group agenda will be thematic.  There will 

be a rota made up of the 3 Chief Officers below who will 

act as Chair in turn: 

Regeneration:  Alyn Owen  

Lifelong Learning;  Sue Walker 

Health and Wellbeing: Lisa Curtis-Jones 

NB: Depending on the theme, attendees for the 

meetings might differ and will include partners such as 

Merthyr Valley Homes, The College Merthyr Tydfil etc. 

P
age 17



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 2 
 

Theme: Regeneration 

Strategic priorities  
 
 Reduce unemployment and worklessness 
 Improve business growth and infrastructure 
 Better town centre and communities 
 

 

 
Theme: Health and Wellbeing 

Strategic priorities: 
 
 Building resilient communities 
 Strengthening families 
 

 

Local outcomes- Regeneration  
 
Over the next five years we will achieve the following local outcomes: 
 

 Reduce economic inactivity  

 Reduce the proportion of children living in workless households 

 Grow the business sector with high levels of survival  

 Increase employment levels  

 Increase opportunities for apprentices  

 Improve the connectivity of the transport infrastructure  

Local outcomes- Health and wellbeing 
 

Over the next five years we will achieve the following local outcomes: 

 

 Improve health and wellbeing 

 Reduce the need for statutory interventions 

 Older people and those with particular housing needs can live independently 
through the provision of accessible homes and support services 

 Improve the resilience of families 

 Reduce homelessness  

Page 19



Theme: Lifelong Learning 

Strategic priorities  
 
 Better achievements 
 Greater opportunities 
 Better prospects 
 

 
 
 

Local outcomes- Lifelong learning 
 
Over the next five years we will achieve the following local outcomes: 
 

 Improve the educational outcomes for all children and young people, but 
particularly the lowest attaining and those in areas of deprivation 

 Develop closer links between schools, the college and work-based learning 
providers to ensure our young people have access to a wider range of 
opportunities  

 Ensure more people are in education, training and volunteering 

 Improve the qualifications of learners to ensure they are work ready 

 Increase the opportunities for people to develop skills for learning, life and work 
and improve their life chance 

Page 20



Civic Centre, Castle Street,  
Merthyr Tydfil    CF47 8AN 

 

Main Tel: 01685 725000 www.merthyr.gov.uk 
 

 

 
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE REPORT 

 

 

 

 

To:  Chair, Ladies and Gentlemen 

Medium Term Financial Plan 2019/20 to 2022/23 – 
Additional Demands 
 
 

1.0 SUMMARY OF THE REPORT 
 
1.1 Council of 21st November 2018 approved corporate additional demands to the 

Medium Term Financial Plan subject to Scrutiny Committees’ deliberation. 
 
1.2 This report considers £926,000 additional demands for 2019/20 relating to services 

falling under the remit of the Governance, Performance, Business Change and 
Corporate Services Scrutiny Committee. 

 
1.3 The additional demands are considered unavoidable and whose inclusion is 

paramount to the Council setting a balanced Budget for 2019/20. Corporate 
Management Team has been instrumental in robustly challenging the necessity for 
these financial pressures to be included within the Budget. 

 

2.0 RECOMMENDATION(S) 
 
2.1 The content of this report be discussed and noted. 
 

 
3.0 INTRODUCTION AND BACKGROUND 
 
3.1 In considering an update to the Council’s Medium Term Financial Plan (MTFP), 

Council of 21st November 2018 approved gross ‘Corporate Additional Demands’ of 
£5.914 million for 2019/20 subject to Scrutiny Committee deliberation. 

 

Date Written 28th December 2018 

Report Author Steve Jones 

Service Area Finance 

Committee Date 8th January 2019 

Page 21

Agenda Item 5



3.2 It was suggested at the Council of 21st November 2018 that further detail in respect 
of the additional demands pertaining to specific areas be reported to the respective 
scrutiny committee for consideration. 

 
3.3 This report details additional explanations in respect of £926,000 of requested 

additional demands for 2019/20 specific to services under the remit of the 
Governance, Performance, Business Change and Corporate Services Scrutiny 
Committee  

 

4.0 WHERE WE WERE  
 
4.1 The Medium Term Financial Plan 2018/19 to 2021/22 approved by Council on 7th 

March 2018 is summarised in Table 1. 
 

Table 1 – MTFP Projected Budget Deficits 2018/19 to 2021/22 
 

Description 2018/19 
£’000 

2019/20 
£’000 

2020/21 
£’000 

2021/22 
£’000 

 
Required Net Budget 
Available Finance 
 

 
117,461 
117,461 

 
123,790 
117,233 

 
127,571 
117,073 

 

 
130,710 
116,981 

 

Projected Budget Deficit 0 6,557 10,498 13,729 

 
4.2 It is evident from Table 1 that the projected budget deficit was £6.557 million for 

2019/20 and a projected cumulative £13.729 million for the 3 year period 2019/20 to 
2021/22.  

 

5.0 WHERE WE ARE NOW  
 
5.1 The updated MTFP reported to Council on 21st November 2018 is outlined in Table 2 

and reflects revisions for the implications of the provisional settlement, corporate 
additional demands, corporate budget reductions and schools’ budget reductions.  

 
Table 2 –Revised Projected Budget Deficits 2019/20 to 2021/22 

 

Description 2019/20 
£’000 

2020/21 
£’000 

2021/22 
£’000 

 
Budget Deficit – Council 7th March 2018 
Implications of Provisional Settlement 
Corporate Additional Demands 
Corporate Budget Reductions 
Schools’ Budget Reductions 
 

 
6,557 

-1,901 
4,914 

-3,236 
-694 

 
10,498 
-2,327 
8,023 

-1,650 
-694 

 
13,729 
-2,742 
8,600 

-1,616 
-694 

Revised Budget Deficit 5,640 13,850 17,277 

 
5.2 It is evident from Table 2 that the revised budget deficit is £5.640 million for 2019/20 

and a projected cumulative £17.277 million for the 3 year period 2019/20 to 2021/22. 
Indicative additional demands of £2 million are included for 2020/21with a further £1 
million for 2021/22 to reflect probable further requirements in addressing 
demographic growth and service financial pressures. Page 22



 
5.3 Managers have identified a number of additional financial demands, considered 

unavoidable, for inclusion in the MTFP, resulting from demographic growth and 
service financial pressures, as summarised in Table 3. 

 
 Table 3 – Additional Budget Demands  
  

Description 2019/20 
£’000 

2020/21 
£’000 

2021/22 
£’000 

 
Education 
Social Services 
Neighbourhood Services 
Community Regeneration 
Support Services 
Corporate Costs 
Less: Indicative Demands Contingency 

 
1,845 
2,599 

427 
117 
146 
780 

-1,000 

 
3,128 
3,126 

723 
135 
146 
765 

0 

 
3,390 
3,305 

815 
141 
146 
803 

0 

Total Additional Demands 4,914 8,023 8,600 

 
5.4 It is evident from Table 3 that net £4.914 million of corporate additional demands are 

proposed for the 2019/20 financial year. It should be noted that the magnitude of this 
additional demand is unprecedented and is indicative of the financial pressures 
faced by all Local Authorities within the United Kingdom particularly within education 
and social services. 

 
5.5 The additional demands considered within this report are in respect of ‘Support 

Services’ and ‘Corporate Costs’ and total £926,000 for 2019/20. These are detailed 
in Appendix 1 and summarised in Table 4. 

 
 Table 4 – ‘Governance’ Additional Budget Demands  
  

Description 2019/20 
£’000 

2020/21 
£’000 

2021/22 
£’000 

 
Service Support and Development 
Benefits 
Revenues 
Members Expenses 
Bank Charges 
Capital Financing Costs 
Residual Strategic Partnership Savings 
Additional Pay Award Costs 
Purchase to Pay System 
IT Replacement Programme 
 

 
22 
69 
48 
7 

22 
200 
109 
207 

42 
200 

 
22 
69 
48 
7 

23 
200 
105 
195 

42 
200 

 
22 
69 
48 
7 

23 
287 

61 
190 

42 
200 

Total Additional Demands 926 911 949 

  

6.0 WHERE WE WANT TO BE  
 
6.1 The Council is required to set its Budget for 2019/20, including the Council Tax 

increase, by 11th March 2019.  
 

Page 23



6.2 Under the Local Government Act 2003, the Chief Finance Officer is required to 
report upon the robustness of the estimates made for the purposes of the budget 
and council tax setting calculations and the adequacy of the proposed financial 
reserves. It is therefore critical that the Council sets a balanced budget taking into 
account all known and projected financial pressures. 

 
6.3 All additional demands detailed in Appendix 1 have been subjected to robust 

challenge by Corporate Management Team in determining the criticality of each 
demand for inclusion within the MTFP. It is recognised that without reflecting these 
unavoidable additional expenditure requirements the Council will not be setting a 
balanced budget for 2019/20. 

 

7.0 WHAT WE NEED TO DO NEXT  
 
7.1 The Joint Scrutiny / Audit Committee of 23rd January 2019 will consider all Scrutiny 

Committees’ comments in respect of the respective additional demand proposals. 
 
7.2 A Special Cabinet, provisionally scheduled for 6th February 2019, will recommend 

the Budget and Council Tax increase for 2019/20 to Council.    
 
7.3 Council of 20th February 2019 will be requested to set a balanced Budget for 

2019/20. 
 

8.0 CONTRIBUTION TO WELLBEING OBJECTIVES 

8.1 The Council’s wellbeing objectives are supported since the proposal is a major 
contributing factor in ensuring the financial sustainability of the Council thus enabling 
the continued delivery of essential Council services for the community.  

 

 
GARETH CHAPMAN 
CHIEF EXECUTIVE 

COUNCILLOR ANDREW BARRY 
CABINET MEMBER FOR GOVERNANCE 

AND CORPORATE SERVICES 
 
 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 
Title of Document(s) Document(s) Date Document Location 

 
Medium Term Financial 
Plan 2018/19 to 2021/22 
 
Medium Term Financial 
Plan 2019/20 to 2022/23 
– Update 1 
 

 
Council 7th March 2018 
 
 
Council 21st November 
2018 

 
Council agenda and minutes / 
Finance Department 
 
Council agenda and minutes / 
Finance Department 
 

 

Does the report contain any issue that may impact the Council’s 
Constitution?  
 

 
No 

 
 
 
 Page 24



Appendix 1 
Medium Term Financial Plan 2019/20 to 2022/23 
Corporate Additional Demands 
 

Additional Demand 2019/20 
£’000 

2020/21 
£’000 

2021/22 
£’000 

 
Corporate Services – Service Support and 
Development 
 

 
22 

 
22 

 
22 

 

 
Currently Budgeted for within the MTFP for 2019/20 (£’000) 
 

 
1,167 

 
Current Year’s (2018/19) Projected Budget Overspend (£’000) 
 

 
21 

 

 
Description 
Reflects reduction in Service Level Agreement with Merthyr Tydfil Leisure Trust in 
respect of switchboard services. 
 
 

 
Service and/or Budget Risk if not Approved 
 
If the growth is not approved a further redundancy would be required to balance 
the budget. The service has already suffered a number of post reductions as a part 
of the Customer programme and can only function adequately if the all the posts in 
the structure are filled. We are already receiving complaints from the public and 
councillors with regards to the time taken to answer calls. Further reductions at this 
time would severely damage the service to the customer. 
 
 

 
Risk Score (5x5 matrix) 
 

Likelihood Impact Total 

5 
 

4 20 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 25



Appendix 1 (continued) 
Medium Term Financial Plan 2019/20 to 2022/23 
Corporate Additional Demands 
 

Additional Demand 2019/20 
£’000 

2020/21 
£’000 

2021/22 
£’000 

 
Corporate Services – Benefits 
 

 
69 

 
69 

 
69 

 

 
Currently Budgeted for within the MTFP for 2019/20 (£’000) 
 

 
364 

 

 
Current Year’s (2018/19) Projected Budget Overspend (£’000) 
 

 
n/a 

 
Description 
Reflects the reinstatement of the budget in respect of contributions to the Citizen’s 
Advice Bureau (CAB). 
  
The budget allocation to fund the CAB originally contained within Benefits was 
vired to Supporting People as from 2018/19. It was then decided that Benefits 
would still be required to carry the costs of supporting the CAB but without the 
reinstatement of the budget allocation. It was envisaged that the cost would be off-
set against income received from the Department for Work and Pensions (DWP) 
for specific purposes but not applied, thus avoiding an over spend against the 
service area.  
 
 

 
Service and/or Budget Risk if not Approved 
The administration grant received is likely to reduce year on year and funding for 
Universal Support (circa £18,000 p.a.) will be lost as from April 2019.  
The ability to cover the above cost is therefore reduced increasing the likelihood of 
a budget overspend.  
 
 

 
Risk Score (5x5 matrix) 
 

Likelihood Impact Total 

5 
 

4 20 

 
 

Page 26



Appendix 1 (continued) 
 
Medium Term Financial Plan 2019/20 to 2022/23 
Corporate Additional Demands 
 

Additional Demand 2019/20 
£’000 

2020/21 
£’000 

2021/22 
£’000 

 
Corporate Services – Revenues 
 

 
48 

 
48 

 
48 

 

 
Currently Budgeted for within the MTFP for 2019/20 (£’000) 
 

 
11 

 
Current Year’s (2018/19) Projected Budget Overspend (£’000) 
 

 
22 

 
Description 
Reflects re-alignment of bailiff income budget.  
 
Historically additional charges made by the Local Authority Enforcement Officers in 
pursuant of outstanding Parking Fixed Penalty Notices, such as Compliance and 
Enforcement Fees, were recovered through a charge made to the Parking 
department. This was a component in the overall income receipt within the 
Revenues budget. As from 2017/18, this procedure was revised, reducing the 
potential income by an estimated £48,000. A reduction in the revenue income is 
therefore required to reflect this change in procedure..  
 
 

 
Service and/or Budget Risk if not Approved 
A budget overspend is likely as there are no opportunities to make up the shortfall 
from other income sources. This outcome can be avoided through a reduction in 
service capacity but with a likely adverse impact on collection rates and 
enforcement fee income.  
 
 

 
Risk Score (5x5 matrix) 
 

Likelihood Impact Total 

5 4 20 

 

Page 27



Appendix 1 (continued) 
Medium Term Financial Plan 2019/20 to 2022/23 
Corporate Additional Demands 
 

Additional Demand 2019/20 
£’000 

2020/21 
£’000 

2021/22 
£’000 

 
Legal and Democratic Services – Members 
Expenses 
 

 
7 

 
7 

 
7 

 

 
Currently Budgeted for within the MTFP for 2019/20 (£’000) 
 

 
783 

 
Current Year’s (2018/19) Projected Budget Overspend (£’000) 
 

 
6 

 
Description 
Reflects increase in members’ salaries. 
 
The proposed increase to Member’s salaries results from the Independent 
Remuneration Panel’s recommendation. 
 
 

 
Service and/or Budget Risk if not Approved 
 
Individual councillors may choose to forego all of part of their individual entitlement, 
but authorities cannot vary or delay implementation of the determinations of 
the Independent Remuneration Panel for Wales.  As per Part 8 (sections 141 to 
160) and Schedules 2 and 3 of the Local Government (Wales) Measure 2011.   
 
 

 
Risk Score (5x5 matrix) 
 

Likelihood Impact Total 

 
5 

 

 
4 

 
20 

 

 

Page 28



Appendix 1 (continued) 
Medium Term Financial Plan 2019/20 to 2022/23 
Corporate Additional Demands 
 

Additional Demand 2019/20 
£’000 

2020/21 
£’000 

2021/22 
£’000 

 
Corporate Costs – Bank Charges 
 

 
22 

 
23 

 
23 

 

 
Currently Budgeted for within the MTFP for 2019/20 (£’000) 
 

 
71 

 
Current Year’s (2018/19) Projected Budget Overspend (£’000) 
 

 
23 

 
Description 
Reflects increase in merchant banking contract fees and loss of credit card 
surcharge income. 
 
Merchant banking costs have increased by approximately 38% over the last two 
years (£18,000 pa), due to increased transaction fees for debit and credit cards. 
 
As a result of changes to UK law, the Council is now unable to pass on the cost of 
credit card transactions to customers. This has resulted in a loss of approximately 
£4,000 income per year. 
 
 

 
Service and/or Budget Risk if not Approved 
 
We are unable to directly control the volume of customers who transact with us 
using credit and debit cards. Based on current volumes this budget will overspend 
in 2019/20 if the growth request is not approved. 
 
 

 
Risk Score (5x5 matrix) 
 

Likelihood Impact Total 

5 4 20 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Page 29



Appendix 1 (continued) 
Medium Term Financial Plan 2019/20 to 2022/23 
Corporate Additional Demands 
 

Additional Demand 2019/20 
£’000 

2020/21 
£’000 

2021/22 
£’000 

 
Corporate Costs – Capital Financing Costs 
 

 
200 

 
200 

 
287 

 

 
Currently Budgeted for within the MTFP for 2019/20 (£’000) 
 

 
7,294 

 
Current Year’s (2018/19) Projected Budget Overspend (£’000) 
 

 
0 

 
Description 
Reflects additional interest payments associated with the deferment of the initiative 
to repay £12 million Lender Option Borrower Option (LOBO) long-term loans. 
Owing to changing economic and interest rate forecasts the proposal is no longer 
considered affordable at this time. The Council currently incurs interest costs of 
£540,000 per year against these loans at an interest rate of 4.5%. 
 
The original proposal was considered in the exempt report to Cabinet of 7th 
February 2018 with the deferment considered in the exempt report to Cabinet of 
25th July 2018. The exemption was required owing to the commercial sensitivity of 
the proposed premium charge for early redemption. 
 
 

 
Service and/or Budget Risk if not Approved 
This budget will overspend if the growth request is not approved. The Lender 
Option Borrower Option Loan has not been repaid and the growth request reflects 
interest that is payable on the Authority’s existing loan structure. 
 
 

 
Risk Score (5x5 matrix) 
 

Likelihood Impact Total 

5 5 25 

 

Page 30



Appendix 1 (continued) 
 
Medium Term Financial Plan 2019/20 to 2022/23 
Corporate Additional Demands 
 

Additional Demand 2019/20 
£’000 

2020/21 
£’000 

2021/22 
£’000 

 
Corporate Costs – Residual Strategic 
Partnership Savings 
 

 
109 

 
105 

 
61 

 

 
Currently Budgeted for within the MTFP for 2019/20 (£’000) 
 

 
-109 

 
Current Year’s (2018/19) Projected Budget Overspend (£’000) 
 

 
n/a 

 
Description 
Reflects the savings deficit in respect of the budgeted £902,000 procurement 
savings included within the Medium Term Financial Plan. The budgeted savings 
were achieved for 2017/18 and 2018/19 but further contract increases have 
resulted in a reduction in savings from 2019/20 onwards. It is anticipated that 
further savings will be achieved through the contract management gateway 
process governed by the Procurement Board. 
 
It is considered more beneficial to focus on the achievement of sustainable long-
term savings than to commit resources to a historical initiative where all potential 
gain has been maximised and exhausted. 
 
 

 
Service and/or Budget Risk if not Approved 
 
Will result in a budget overspend resulting in the Council not setting a balanced 
budget for 2019/20 and over the medium term 
 
 

 
Risk Score (5x5 matrix) 
 

Likelihood Impact Total 

5 4 20 

 
 

Page 31



Appendix 1 (continued) 
Medium Term Financial Plan 2019/20 to 2022/23 
Corporate Additional Demands 
 

Additional Demand 2019/20 
£’000 

2020/21 
£’000 

2021/22 
£’000 

 
Corporate Costs – Additional Pay Award Costs 
 

 
207 

 
195 

 
190 

 

 
Currently Budgeted for within the MTFP for 2019/20 (£’000) 
 

 
n/a 

 
Current Year’s (2018/19) Projected Budget Overspend (£’000) 
 

 
n/a 

 
Description 
Reflects the additional costs arising from the National Employers for Local 
Government Services pay award for the period 1st April 2018 to 31st March 2020. In 
essence although the pay award equates to a 2% increase per annum this 
increase is greater for employees at the lower spinal points of the pay structure. 
 
 

 
Service and/or Budget Risk if not Approved 
 
 
Will result in a budget overspend resulting in the Council not setting a balanced 
budget for 2019/20 and over the medium term 
 
 

 
Risk Score (5x5 matrix) 
 

Likelihood Impact Total 

5 5 25 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Page 32



Appendix 1 (continued) 
Medium Term Financial Plan 2019/20 to 2022/23 
Corporate Additional Demands 
 

Additional Demand 2019/20 
£’000 

2020/21 
£’000 

2021/22 
£’000 

 
Corporate Costs – Purchase to Pay System 
 

 
42 

 
42 

 
42 

 

 
Currently Budgeted for within the MTFP for 2019/20 (£’000) 
 

 
0 

 
Current Year’s (2018/19) Projected Budget Overspend (£’000) 
 

 
0 

 
Description 
Reflects additional costs of supporting and maintaining the Council’s purchase to 
pay system following replacement of the existing system – Cabinet approval 4th 
July 2018. 
 
 

 
Service and/or Budget Risk if not Approved 
From a service perspective it means we do not comply with elements of the Welsh 
Procurement Policy Statement in terms of commitment 6 – simplified standard 
processes.  This is concerned with adopting common procurement approaches 
(Welsh collaborative marketplace) and making the best use of tools available 
(electronic ordering) to streamline our commerce activities with the supply base.  It 
means that if we did not have P2P, the Council would be unable to monitor and 
manage over £5 million of spend on goods and services which ultimately could 
lead to budget overspends due to lack of oversight at the front end of the process 
(which P2P provides).   
 
In addition the Council has a contract with the P2P provider and if the contract is 
cancelled a cancellation cost to the Council will apply. 
 
 

 
Risk Score (5x5 matrix) 
 

Likelihood Impact Total 

5 4 20 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 33



Appendix 1 (continued) 
Medium Term Financial Plan 2019/20 to 2022/23 
Corporate Additional Demands 
 

Additional Demand 2019/20 
£’000 

2020/21 
£’000 

2021/22 
£’000 

 
Corporate Costs – IT Replacement Programme 
 

 
200 

 
200 

 
200 

 

 
Currently Budgeted for within the MTFP for 2019/20 (£’000) 
 

 
n/a 

 
Current Year’s (2018/19) Projected Budget Overspend (£’000) 
 

 
n/a 

 
Description 
Relates to both hardware and software costs and is time critical owing to the 
necessity to remove Windows 7 (end of life) from the network by January 2020 to 
avoid public sector network non-compliance, loss of connection and the risk of 
cyber-attack. 
 
 

 
Service and/or Budget Risk if not Approved 
 
Approximately 790 Windows 7 devices must be replaced or upgraded to prevent a 
breach of the Public Sector Network code of connection and face disconnection. If 
we do not remove these devices we will fail our penetration test audit and face 
disconnection which will result in business critical system failures. For example 
Benefits unable to process information with Her Majesty’s Revenue and Customs 
(HMRC), Registrars unable to register births/deaths, secure e-mail, Welsh 
Community Care Information System (WCCIS) implications etc. 
 
No security updates will be released by Microsoft after January 2020 to fix any new 
security vulnerabilities in Windows 7. This introduces a major risk of cyber or virus 
attack, potential loss of critical and/or personal data, financial penalty from the 
Information Commissioner’s Office (ICO) and loss of public confidence/poor 
publicity. 
 
 

 
Risk Score (5x5 matrix) 
 

Likelihood Impact Total 

5 5 25 

 
 
 
 

Page 34



Civic Centre, Castle Street,  
Merthyr Tydfil    CF47 8AN 

 

Main Tel: 01685 725000 www.merthyr.gov.uk 
 

 
 

SCRUTINY REPORT 
 

 

 

 

To:  Chair, Ladies and Gentlemen 

Work Programme 2018/19  
 
 
1.0 PURPOSE OF THE REPORT 
 

1.1 To provide the Scrutiny Committee with its work programme for consideration and to 
prepare in advance of the next scrutiny committee meeting. 

 
1.2 To remind Scrutiny Committee members that they need to consider the requirements 

of the Wellbeing of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 in all aspects of scrutiny 
work. 

 
2.0 RECOMMENDATION(S) 
 

2.1 The Committee considers the attached draft work programme and approves, revises 
or amends it as deemed appropriate; and to consider the questions at 3.2 in planning 
for the next meeting.  

 
 

3.0 INTRODUCTION AND BACKGROUND 
 

3.1 The attached work programme identifies the topics and issues under consideration 
by the Scrutiny Committee and allows an opportunity for additional subjects to be 
identified and included on the programme. 

 
3.2 Scrutiny committees are required to prepare and keep under review a programme for 

their future work. By reviewing and prioritising issues, members are able to ensure 
that the work programme delivers a member-led agenda.  

 
3.3 The Wellbeing of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 requires each Public Service 

Board (PSB) and Council to work with their communities to develop local objectives. 
Merthyr Tydfil County Borough Council (MTCBC) and the Cwm Taf PSB have acted 
on this. 

Date Written 14th December 2018 

Report Author Scrutiny Section 

Committee Division Scrutiny  

Exempt/Non Exempt Non Exempt 

Committee Date 8th January 2019 

Page 35

Agenda Item 6



 
3.4 MTCBC has four local Wellbeing Objectives, each having clear outcomes that will 

help the Council to respond to local community needs and contribute to the seven 
national wellbeing goals. The four Wellbeing Objectives are:- 

 
 

BS Best Start to Life - Children and young people get the best start to life and are 
equipped with the skills they need to be successful learners and confident 
individuals. The key outcomes (or components) for Best Start to Life are: 
 

 Children live in a nurturing and stimulating home environment  

 Children have access to high quality pre-school and school education  

 Improve the educational outcomes for all children and young people  

 Children and young people have good health and wellbeing 
 
 

WL Working Life - People feel supported to develop the skills required to meet the 
needs of businesses, with a developing, safe infrastructure that establishes Merthyr 
Tydfil as an attractive destination. The key outcomes (or components) to support the 
response to this objective include:  
 

 Making skills work for Merthyr Tydfil: developing the workforce of the future;  

 Developing the environment and infrastructure for business to flourish;  

 Communities protect, enhance and promote our heritage and cultural assets;  

 Developing safer communities; and  

 Supporting and accommodating those most disadvantaged in the housing market. 
 
 

EW Environmental Wellbeing - Communities protect, enhance and promote our 
environment and countryside. The key outcomes (or components) for communities to 
protect, enhance and promote our environment and countryside include:  
 

 Minimise environmental damage through prevention of pollution;  

 Maximise efficient use of materials and resources by means of the waste 
hierarchy;  

 Developing good quality, biodiverse and connected green infrastructure and open 
spaces; and  

 Promoting and supporting the use of renewable and low carbon energy. 
 
 

LW Living Well - People are empowered to live independently within their 
communities, where they are safe and enjoy good physical and mental health. To 
ensure a holistic approach is met in this objective, the key outcomes (or 
components) for Living Well will include:  
 

 Safeguarding children and adults who are at risk of harm;  

 Tackling adverse childhood experiences and developing community Resilience;  

 Promoting healthy behaviours and increased levels of physical activity;  

 Promote good emotional wellbeing and improved mental health;  

 Clear and accessible information and advice; and  

 Services that provide people with the ability to live in their own home 
 

 
3.5 The Scrutiny Committee is encouraged to identify issues that reflect these priorities 

that are within your remit and/or are a priority for local people and communities. If a 

Page 36



matter is a recurring issue for the people you, as Councillors, represent, the 
likelihood is that it is something that the Committee should consider. The more 
relevant the issue is to local communities then the greater the likelihood of engaging 
those communities in the scrutiny process and of producing outcomes that will be 
visible to those communities you represent. 

 
3.6 MTCBC has developed an ‘Our Shared Vision’ document (Appendix I). This makes 

the connections from the seven national Wellbeing Goals through to the local 
objectives and political priorities. This document is contained within one page and 
acts as an easy to understand guide. When considered with service area strategies 
and operational plans a thread is created that can be extended down to individual 
tasks. This helps staff members see how they are contributing to the Act and the 
‘Wales We Want’, and will assist Scrutiny members better understand the 
connections with the Act. 

 
3.7 The work programme is a dynamic document and is reviewed at every meeting of 

the Committee to ensure that its contents are still relevant and will add value to what 
the Council and partners are doing. At each meeting the committee will agree the 
agenda items for their next meeting and in preparation may in advance wish to ask 
itself the following questions. 
 

Q) Why has the item been placed on a Scrutiny Work Programme? 

a. Does this item/topic contribute to the delivery of the Council’s wellbeing 
objectives and priorities? 

b. Is this item/topic relating to service performance concerns? 
c. Is this item/topic of significant public interest? 
d. Has the item/topic got budgetary implications? 
e. Is this a item/topic where Scrutiny involvement will make a significant 

difference and achieve tangible outcomes? 
f. Can effective Scrutiny of this issue be delivered from within available 

resources? 
 
Q) What is the specific role of the Committee? 

            This will depend on the item – for example the role could be: 
a. to determine if performance levels are acceptable in relation to a particular 

department; 
 b.  to determine if a specific policy is fit for purpose; 

 c.  to satisfy itself that the Authority is working well with its partners in tackling a 
major issue; 

d.  to gather the views of specific stakeholders as part of an on-going scrutiny 
investigation / review; 

e. to explore possible solutions to an issue. 
 

Q) What outcome is the Committee seeking from the consideration of this 
item? 

a. To comment on the proposed budget and make suggestions to cabinet 
regarding the proposed budget’s ability to deliver the priorities of the council  

b. Identification of any causes for concern and note successes. 
c. To receive an overview presentation. 
d. To gain an understanding of and to comment on a policy / strategy 

Page 37



e. To explore ideas around the setting of budgets while considering the 
pressures facing each service. This also helps provide an overview of the 
policy frame work.  

f. For the scrutiny committee to gain an overview and refresh their knowledge of 
the wellbeing objectives / other plan / other strategy. 

g. Improvement in service delivery 
 

Q) What information does the Committee need to fulfil this role / achieve 
this outcome?  

What is the Committee trying to do? You might be trying to do some or all of 
the following i.e. establish facts; gather opinions; or explore new ideas / 
solutions. 

 

Q) Who should be invited to the meeting to provide the information? 

Depending on the information you need you might want to hear from a range 
of witnesses – e.g. Cabinet members, Senior Officers, Service users, and 
External partners – e.g. Police, Strategic Partners etc 

 

Q) Does the Committee need to ask for written representations? 

The Committee may wish to pose some questions to the Directorate / Cabinet 
Member / External Partner etc prior to the meeting. This may help in instances 
when the Committee is looking for something specific to be addressed. This 
will assist whoever is attending ensure that they have the information / answer 
ready for the meeting.  

 

Q) Which meeting format / venue would be most appropriate for the item 
and for the witnesses that will be invited to attend? 

 Meetings do not have to be held in a formal committee room environment. 
You may wish to hold occasional meetings out in the community e.g. 
community centres, sports facilities etc. It depends on the subject. Some 
people find the formal setting intimidating. Site visits for example may be more 
appropriate to see first-hand what the committee is investigating / obtaining 
information on e.g. waste sites, regeneration projects etc. 

 
Q) Method of Scrutiny? 

 Once Members have identified the matters they wish to scrutinise, 
consideration should be given to scoping the subject in more detail including 
the timing and method of scrutiny to be used. Support in this process will be 
given by the Scrutiny and Support Manager and Officer. Members may wish 
to: 

a. Consider an item at a single meeting; 

b. Consider an item over a series of meetings; 

c. Allocate the work to a small working group of Members (Task & Finish group) 
to investigate the issue over a period of 2-3 months (this may involve visits to 
see how services are working in practice); 

d. Undertake an Inquiry Day (or days); 

e. Undertake joint scrutiny with members of another Scrutiny Committee; 

f. Invite expert witnesses to give their views; 

Page 38



g. Seeking the views of service users/carers and/or the general public (public 
calls for evidence). 

 
 
 
Performance and Scrutiny Department 
MTCBC 
 
 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 
Title of Document(s) Document(s) Date Document Location 

Statement of Wellbeing 
& Focus on the Future: 
Wellbeing in our 
Community 

4th April 2018 MTCBC Website 
 
Full Council 4th April 2018  
 
 

 

Does the report contain any issue that may impact the Council’s 
Constitution?  
 

No 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 39

http://democracy.merthyr.gov.uk/documents/g2694/Public%20reports%20pack%2004th-Apr-2018%2017.30%20Full%20Council.pdf?T=10&LLL=0


 

 

APPENDIX I 

Page 40



Governance, Performance, Business Change, and Corporate Services Scrutiny Committee  
Work Programme Descriptors 2018/19 

(The Work Programme is reviewed at each meeting and as such is subject to change) 

As per the WAO scrutiny forward work programmes should: provide a clear rationale for topic selection; be more outcome focussed; ensure that the method of scrutiny is best suited to the topic area and the 
outcome desired; align scrutiny programmes with the council’s performance management, self-evaluation and improvement arrangements. 

 

-- 
Date / Timing Overarching Item Officer & Cabinet Member  Scrutiny Focus  

29th May 2018 

Draft Committee Work 

Programme 2018/19 

 

Update from Task & Finish 

Group (Cllr Tanya Skinner / 

Mr Jeff Beard) 

The committee to discuss the draft work programme as prepared by the 

Task and Finish Group 

 

Merthyr Tydfil Leisure 
Trust 
 

Mark Thomas / John 
Selwood 

Scrutiny & Challenge: - A progress update following the meeting on 26th 
March 2018.  
 

Referral from Full Council - 
Objections & Appeals Sub 
Committee Amendment 
Report 
 

Simon Jones / Geraint 
Morgan 

Scrutiny & Challenge: - To consider a referral from Council which resolved 
that: The entire report be referred to the relevant Scrutiny Committee for 
further consideration and then be referred back to Full Council for 
consideration. 

10th July 2018 

Draft Annual Governance 
Statement 
 

Gary Evans (Audit 
Manager) 

Scrutiny & Challenge:- To provide scrutiny with the opportunity to challenge 
and contribute to the  Draft Annual Governance Statement document 
before it gets reported to full Council 

Establishment of City Deal 
Joint Overview and 
Scrutiny 
 

No Officers invited. Report 
from Scrutiny Officer 

Scrutiny & Challenge: - to consider the establishment of, and governance 
arrangements for, a Joint Scrutiny Committee of the ten Councils involved in 
the Cardiff Capital Region City Deal.  It will be a decision for each authority if 
it wishes to participate in the proposed Joint Scrutiny Committee. 

Wellbeing Objective – 
Living Well 
 
 

Lisa Curtis-Jones / Annabel 
Lloyd / Mark Anderton 

Scrutiny & Challenge: - LW Living Well - People are empowered to live 
independently within their communities, where they are safe and enjoy 
good physical and mental health. To ensure a holistic approach is met in this 
objective, the key outcomes (or components) for Living Well will include:  
• Safeguarding children and adults who are at risk of harm;  
• Tackling adverse childhood experiences and developing community 
Resilience;  
• Promoting healthy behaviours and increased levels of physical activity;  
• Promote good emotional wellbeing and improved mental health;  
• Clear and accessible information and advice; and  
• Services that provide people with the ability to live in their own home 
 

P
age 41



Governance, Performance, Business Change, and Corporate Services Scrutiny Committee  
Work Programme Descriptors 2018/19 

(The Work Programme is reviewed at each meeting and as such is subject to change) 

As per the WAO scrutiny forward work programmes should: provide a clear rationale for topic selection; be more outcome focussed; ensure that the method of scrutiny is best suited to the topic area and the 
outcome desired; align scrutiny programmes with the council’s performance management, self-evaluation and improvement arrangements. 

 

  

4th September 
2018 

Merthyr Tydfil Leisure 
Trust Update 

Officers from Merthyr 
Tydfil Leisure Trust,  
Mark Thomas and John 
Sellwood 

Scrutiny & Challenge: - Following the written report presented by officers 
from Merthyr Tydfil Leisure Trust at the meeting of 26th March 2018; 
Committee Members will receive a verbal update on progress made to date.   

Change Programme 
 

Ellis Cooper / Andrew 
Mogford 

Scrutiny & Challenge: - Scrutiny Members to review the ‘pre-decision’ status  
of areas identified for financial savings 
 

Draft Cabinet Work 
programme report 
following WAO report 

Task and Finish Group 
update (Cllr Skinner) 

Scrutiny & Challenge: - Discussed as part of the work programme item 17th 
October 2017.  A Task and Finish Group was established to report to Cabinet 
on developing a Cabinet Work Programme. The Committee to consider the 
first draft report of the Task and Finish group. 

9th October 
2018 

DRAFT Annual 
Performance Report 
 
 

Andrew Mogford Scrutiny & Challenge: - The Annual Performance Report is a statutory is a 
statutory document which the Council is required to publish to 
communicate our self-evaluation of delivery against our wellbeing 
objectives.  The Committee is requested to review the draft report and offer 
feedback on its’ content. 

Local Authority Support to 
the Third Sector Services 

Alyn Owen / Chris Long / 
Ryan Barry 

Monitoring & Scrutiny:  Local Authority Support to the Third Sector This 
item was as a result of a WAO report. Subsequent to the item being 
discussed at the scrutiny meeting an email was sent to the Chief Executive 
and the Cabinet Portfolio Member. A copy of the email is attached 
“Governance Scrutiny – WAO report “Local Authority…” As a result of 
scrutiny’s involvement a report was submitted to the Governance Services 
Scrutiny Committee meeting on 13th February. Here is a link to the agenda 
for 13th Feb (see item 3). This will remain on the scrutiny committees work 
programme. Minutes of meeting  

Merthyr Tydfil Leisure 
Trust progress update 

Mark Thomas / John 
Sellwood 

Scrutiny & Challenge: - A progress update following verbal update at the last 
meeting.  

P
age 42

http://democracy.merthyr.gov.uk/documents/s36992/Committee%20Report.pdf?LLL=0
http://democracy.merthyr.gov.uk/documents/g2748/Public%20reports%20pack%2013th-Feb-2018%2016.00%20Scrutiny%20Governance%20Performance%20Business%20Change%20and%20Co.pdf?T=10&LLL=0
http://democracy.merthyr.gov.uk/documents/g2748/Public%20reports%20pack%2013th-Feb-2018%2016.00%20Scrutiny%20Governance%20Performance%20Business%20Change%20and%20Co.pdf?T=10&LLL=0
http://democracy.merthyr.gov.uk/documents/g2748/Printed%20minutes%2013th-Feb-2018%2016.00%20Scrutiny%20Governance%20Performance%20Business%20Change%20and%20Corpor.pdf?T=1&LLL=0


Governance, Performance, Business Change, and Corporate Services Scrutiny Committee  
Work Programme Descriptors 2018/19 

(The Work Programme is reviewed at each meeting and as such is subject to change) 

As per the WAO scrutiny forward work programmes should: provide a clear rationale for topic selection; be more outcome focussed; ensure that the method of scrutiny is best suited to the topic area and the 
outcome desired; align scrutiny programmes with the council’s performance management, self-evaluation and improvement arrangements. 

 

20th November 
2018 

Wellbeing Objective  - 
Environmental Wellbeing 
(including  Fly Tipping) 
 
 

Cheryllee Evans (other 
officers to be confirmed) 

Scrutiny & Challenge: - EW Environmental Wellbeing - Communities protect, 
enhance and promote our environment and countryside. The key outcomes 
(or components) for communities to protect, enhance and promote our 
environment and countryside include:  
 

• Minimise environmental damage through prevention of pollution;  
• Maximise efficient use of materials and resources by means of the 

waste hierarchy;  
• Developing good quality, biodiverse and connected green 

infrastructure and open spaces; and  
• Promoting and supporting the use of renewable and low carbon 

energy. 

General Data Protection 
Regulation (GDPR) 
 

Cllr Andrew Barry / Lisa 
Richards 

Scrutiny & Challenge: -  This May (2018) the Data Protection Act will be 
replaced by the General Data Protection Regulations (GDPR).The GDPR will 
ensure that our processing of personal information activities are fit for 
purpose within the digital age. The Authority will need to demonstrate 
compliance by completing “Data Protection Impact Assessments”.  This 
committee will seek assurance that the Authority is compliant with the Act. 

Merthyr Tydfil Leisure 
Trust progress update 
 

Mark Thomas / John 
Sellwood 

Scrutiny & Challenge: - Following the meeting on 9h October 2018, 
Members of the Trust were asked to come back to the Committee with a 
copy of the short-term recovery plan to outline its’ content and offer 
Committee Members some background as to its content. 

8th January 
2019 

Change Programme  
 
 
 
 

Ellis Cooper / Andrew 
Mogford 

Scrutiny & Challenge: -   Scrutiny Members to review the ‘post-decision’ 
status of areas originally identified for financial savings and identified 
whether savings have been achieved, the impact of this service 
rationalisation etc. 
 

Human Resources Cllr Andrew Barry / Fran 
Donnelly 

Scrutiny & Challenge:- WAO Report - Improvement Assessment 2015-16: 
Review of the Council’s Human Resources Function . 1) Contrast and 
compare the WAO proposals for improvement in the report. 2) Comment on 
the single points of dependency across the Authority – how much of a risk is 
this in terms of capacity and capability of the Authority (workforce 
planning). 3) An update on corporate sickness absence statistics over the last 
3 years.  4) a quarterly report on agency staff employed by the local 
authority including financial details / costs. 

P
age 43

http://democracy.merthyr.gov.uk/documents/s34392/Wales%20Audit%20Office%20Report.pdf
http://democracy.merthyr.gov.uk/documents/s34392/Wales%20Audit%20Office%20Report.pdf


Governance, Performance, Business Change, and Corporate Services Scrutiny Committee  
Work Programme Descriptors 2018/19 

(The Work Programme is reviewed at each meeting and as such is subject to change) 

As per the WAO scrutiny forward work programmes should: provide a clear rationale for topic selection; be more outcome focussed; ensure that the method of scrutiny is best suited to the topic area and the 
outcome desired; align scrutiny programmes with the council’s performance management, self-evaluation and improvement arrangements. 

 

  Anti-Poverty Action Plan 
 

Sue Walker / Lisa Curtis-
Jones / Chris Hole 

Scrutiny & Challenge: - Reducing the number of people who live in poverty 
is a priority for Welsh Government, local authorities and other public and 
third sector partners in Wales.  Local authorities have their own 
arrangements and plans in place to tackle poverty and they work with 
partners to deliver key Welsh Government programmes. The committee 
wants a report to include what arrangements are in place in the County 
Borough; and wish to see the associated strategy and action plan. 
 

26th February 
2019 

Wellbeing Objective – Best 
Start to Life 
 
 

Sue Walker / Annabel Lloyd  Scrutiny & Challenge: -  BS Best Start to Life - Children and young people get 
the best start to life and are equipped with the skills they need to be 
successful learners and confident individuals. The key outcomes (or 
components) for Best Start to Life are: 
• Children live in a nurturing and stimulating home environment  
• Children have access to high quality pre-school and school education  
• Improve the educational outcomes for all children and young people  
• Children and young people have good health and wellbeing 
 

Merthyr Tydfil Leisure 
Trust progress update 
 

Mark Thomas / Andrew 
Mogford 

Scrutiny & Challenge: - A progress update following the meeting on 26th 
March 2018.  
 

Recommendations made 
by external regulators 
(WAO, CSSIW, ESTYN, WG 
Commissioners etc.).  

 

Internal Audit Department Scrutiny, Challenge and Monitor:- To receive a report on regulatory body 
recommendations and directions to see if this Authority is addressing them 
satisfactorily. 
 

P
age 44



Governance, Performance, Business Change, and Corporate Services Scrutiny Committee  
Work Programme Descriptors 2018/19 

(The Work Programme is reviewed at each meeting and as such is subject to change) 

As per the WAO scrutiny forward work programmes should: provide a clear rationale for topic selection; be more outcome focussed; ensure that the method of scrutiny is best suited to the topic area and the 
outcome desired; align scrutiny programmes with the council’s performance management, self-evaluation and improvement arrangements. 

 

  

9th April 2019 

Wellbeing Objective – 
Working Life 
 
 

Alyn Owen / Chris Long / 
Steve Peters 

Scrutiny & Challenge: - WL Working Life - People feel supported to develop 
the skills required to meet the needs of businesses, with a developing, safe 
infrastructure that establishes Merthyr Tydfil as an attractive destination. 
The key outcomes (or components) to support the response to this objective 
include:  
 
• Making skills work for Merthyr Tydfil: developing the workforce of the 
future;  
• Developing the environment and infrastructure for business to flourish;  
• Communities protect, enhance and promote our heritage and cultural 
assets;  
• Developing safer communities; and  
• Supporting and accommodating those most disadvantaged in the housing 
market 
 

Merthyr Tydfil Leisure 
Trust progress update 

Mark Thomas / Andrew 
Mogford 

Scrutiny & Challenge: - A progress update following the meeting on 26th 
March 2018.  

   

Date to be 
confirmed 
 

Wellbeing Objectives 
reporting to scrutiny 

Wellbeing Objectives reporting to scrutiny – At the Neighbourhood Services Scrutiny committee meeting 
on 30th October 2018 it was felt that as the first round of reporting to each of the scrutiny committees was 
nearing an end, that the committee would comment on experiences to date. As such an email was sent to 
the Chief Executive and Cabinet Portfolio Member (and others) asking that the Performance Team review 
progress to date and identify any lessons learned. A copy of the email is attached “Wellbeing Objectives 
reporting to Scrutiny”. Subsequently a report was submitted to the Governance Scrutiny committee 
Report to Governance scrutiny on 9th January 2018  Scrutiny awaits a further report on this issue and this 
has been added to the work programme (date to be agreed). 

Date to be 
confirmed 
 

Emergency Planning Rob 
Gough / Cllr Andrew Barry 

Scrutiny, Challenge and Monitor: - The committee wants to know what plans are in place to minimise the 
impact of any disaster on the community and environment and manage the return to normality. 

Date to be 
confirmed 
 

Household Waste and 
Recycling Centres 

Scrutiny, Challenge and Monitor: Report to Cabinet 27th September 2017. Contract expires Sept 2018. 
Follow up on progress around March 2019 on what progress there has been since 

P
age 45

http://democracy.merthyr.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=328&MId=2738&Ver=4&LLL=0
http://democracy.merthyr.gov.uk/documents/s38104/Committee%20Report.pdf?LLL=0


Governance, Performance, Business Change, and Corporate Services Scrutiny Committee  
Work Programme Descriptors 2018/19 

(The Work Programme is reviewed at each meeting and as such is subject to change) 

As per the WAO scrutiny forward work programmes should: provide a clear rationale for topic selection; be more outcome focussed; ensure that the method of scrutiny is best suited to the topic area and the 
outcome desired; align scrutiny programmes with the council’s performance management, self-evaluation and improvement arrangements. 

 

 

 
 

Date to be 
confirmed 
 

Wales Audit Office - Good 
governance when 
determining significant 
service changes – National 
Summary  
As part of scrutiny review 

http://www.audit.wales/system/files/publications/Good-Governance-2017-Eng_0.pdf 
 
The report comes up with a number of “learning points” throughout the report, a number of which relate 
to scrutiny. These need to be summarised and used to change the way scrutiny works. 

Date to be 
confirmed 
 

Community Engagement / 
Constitution 
 

At the meeting of 26th March 2018 a Task and Finish Group was agreed to take forward Community 
Engagement and how this can be incorporated into the Constitution. ToR yet to be agreed. 

Date to be 
confirmed 

Fly-tipping Task & Finish 
Group Feedback 

Scrutiny & Challenge:  To review the findings of the Task & Finish Group established to review the issue of 
fly-tipping (see Wellbeing Objective - Environmental Wellbeing (including Fly Tipping) October 2018. Has a 
T&FG been established? 

Dates as per 
work 
programme 

Merthyr Tydfil Leisure 
Trust 
 

At the Joint Audit and Scrutiny meeting on 26th March 2018, the Trust advised that a lot of work has gone 
on. The committee to agree what they require when discussing the work programme at every meeting.    

P
age 46

http://www.audit.wales/system/files/publications/Good-Governance-2017-Eng_0.pdf

	Agenda
	3 Human Resources
	4 Tackling Poverty
	Appendix 1
	Appendix 2

	5 Medium Term Financial Plan 2019/20 to 2022/23 – Additional Demands
	6 Work Programme 2018/19
	Appendix 1


